2018 Adult Treatment Drug Court FOA – 1-19-18
Fiscal Year 2018 Funding Opportunity Announcement
TI-18-008: Grants to Expand Substance Abuse Treatment Capacity in Adult Treatment Drug Courts and Adult Tribal Healing to Wellness Courts
OPERATOR:  Welcome and thank you for standing by. At this time, all participants are in a listen-only mode. During today’s Q&A session, if you’d like to ask a question, please press star then one. Today's call is also being recorded. If you have any objections, you may disconnect at this time.  Now I’d like to turn this meeting over to your host Ms. Amy Romero. Thank you.  You may begin.

MS. AMY ROMERO:  Thank you, Cedric. Welcome everyone to today's webinar.  Today's webinar is regarding Fiscal Year 2018  Funding Opportunity TI‑18‑008: Grants to Expand Substance Abuse Treatment Capacity in Adult Treatment Drug Courts and Adult Tribal Healing to Wellness Courts. My name is Amy Romero and I am one of the government Project Officers for the Adult Treatment Drug Courts Grant within the Center for Substance Abuse Treatment as SAMHSA. 
Today's webinar is being recorded and the PowerPoint and webinar recording will be posted on the SAMHSA website with the solicitation in the next two weeks. 
Here is our agenda for today. I will be conducting a review of the Funding Opportunity Announcement with Twyla Adams, Branch Chief of the Targeted Population Branch at SAMHSA CSAT. Eileen Bermudez SAMHSA grants management team lead will be joining us to discuss the budgetary aspects of this solicitation. And we have the pleasure today to have Carolyn Harden, Chief of Training and Research at NADCP with us today to provide guidance and tips on how to submit a successful drug court grant application. 
The purpose of this FOA is to expand substance use disorder treatment services in existing adult problem solving courts and Adult Tribal Healing to Wellness Courts which use the treatment drug court model in order to provide substance use disorder treatment, including recovery support services, screening assessment, case management and program coordination to defendants and offenders. The application is due on February 21, 2018 at 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time. Available funding is up to $15.2 million. We will fund 38 awards. The estimated award amount is up to $400,000 per year. The length of the project period is up to five years, and this is longer than the programs that we have funded in the past. 
The FY18 adult treatment drug court funding opportunity announcement can be accessed on the SAMHSA's website at the link listed on your screen. You must respond to the requirements listed in the FOA in preparing your application. You must use the forms in the application package to complete your application. Please read all the appendices. Those include helpful information. 
Applicants are required to complete four registration processes. This is listed in detail on Appendix A - Application and Submission Requirements starting on page 28 of the FOA. Register to the Dun & Bradstreet Data Universal Numbering System to obtain the DUNS number, register to the System for Award Management, SAM. You need to make sure you're registered to grants.gov. And you also need to register on the new system the NIH eRA Commons grant system. And if you haven't just started this process, I encourage you to do it right away. I know that in the FOA it states that you should allow at least six weeks6 please start now in case there are any glitches or problems making sure that you can access all four systems. If you have any submission issues, contact the grants.gov or eRA Commons help desk. And the contact information for the help desk is on page 36. 
You must submit your application to grants.gov. All applications that are successfully submitted must be validated by grants.gov before proceeding to the NIH eRA Common system for validation. So there are actually two validation processes that go on. Grants.gov is a very simple one to make sure that you have the basic requirements that we have asked for. If your application passes that successfully, it will be moved onto the NIH eRA Common systems and there is another validation process. If you had any issues with the first system, grants.gov, they will send you a notification by email letting you know there is an error and at that time you can fix it. If you fix that, you must resubmit it back to grants.gov. Please read page 34 to 36 carefully. All of this is included. 
However, we all know that there are some problems with email sometimes and sometimes you don't get them. So I would check back with the system frequently and make sure that it was either moved on successfully to SAMHSA. You can contact the help desk and they should be able to provide you with that information. Again, I encourage you to check in and resubmit the application to grants.gov before the application due date end time. If you find out there are errors and you haven't given yourself enough time and don't have time to resubmit it, it will not be received and it will not be reviewed. So please do not leave this to the last day and avoid any issues. Every time we do this, we have people that do wait to the last minute and there are usually problems with the DUNS number or the SAM account. So please try to submit your application a few days before the deadline. 
In the eRA system, you must correct all errors or your application will not be submitted. If you get a warning, please review the warnings but your application will be submitted. And we just have a scam alert. Registration for all four systems needed for these solicitations are free. You should not be asked to make any type of payments to register for any of the systems required for this grant solicitation. An applicant informed SAMHSA that after recently completing their SAM.gov registration, they received a telephone call from someone who stated that they worked with SAM.gov and the federal government Development Center in Washington, D.C. The caller told the applicant that their SAM.gov registration could not be completed until they paid $1,000. The caller asked the applicant to confirm their DUNS numbers and email address. There are no costs for registering for DUNS. We just want to bring that up. Or SAM or grants.gov. If you come across a similar situation, please report with SAM at HHS.gov. Do not make any payments. 
At this time, we will take questions. Operator, please let us know if we have any questions so far. 
OPERATOR:  Sure. As a quick reminder, if you’d like to ask a question, please press star then one. Remember to unmute your phone and record your name clearly when prompted. If you would like to withdraw that question, you may press star two. One moment as we wait for the first question. Your first question comes from Tom. Your line is open.

TOM:   After you submit to grants.gov and it goes to the eRA Commons, is that an automatic process where you submit it into grants.gov and it just moves to eRA Commons? Or do you have to do a specific procedure to move it to eRA Commons? 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  After you have your eRA Commons account setup, it’s an automatic process. But you have to ensure that you have the account setup with the PI and you have to ensure that the role of the PI is the actual person that will be the Project Director
TOM:  Thank you.

MS. AMY ROMERO:  You’re welcome. 
OPERATOR:  Showing no further questions. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  Okay. You can also submit questions through the Q&A on the webinar. We will be reviewing or responding to those questions as well. 

Eligibility. We will review the eligibility for the FOA. And this is listed on pages 5 and 16 of the FOA. Eligible applicants include state governments and all U.S. territories are listed on your screen. 
Governmental units within political subdivisions of a state such as a county, city, town or local jurisdiction can apply. And this includes individual adult treatment drug courts, but those must be part of a government unit. 
Federally recognized American Indian/Alaskan Native tribes, tribal organizations and consortium of tribes or tribal organizations. Drug courts funded in FY 2016 under announcement TI-16-009 and FY 2017 under announcement TI-17-001 are not eligible to apply for these programs. 
Public and private nonprofit organizations, such as substance use disorder treatment providers, have a supporting role in adult treatment drug court programs and may be contractors to the applicants. However, they are not the catalysts for entry into the drug courts and are, therefore, restricted from applying. I have already had a few questions about eligibility. And I really recommend that you have to be -- the applicant must be a government entity. Other entities can partner with the government entity, but the applicant must be the county or the state or a local government agency. 
Eligible drug courts must be operational on or before September 1, 2018. And operational is defined as having a set docket of cases and seeing clients in the drug court by a judge. This grant program is not intended to provide startup funds to create a new drug treatment court. Programs must be operational. I want to really caution you on a screen out. This is very important because this is done initially by our program officers at CSAT. So these are very important to pay attention to. 
Your organization must be a tribal, state or local government entity. This FOA is not for juvenile drug courts or family drug courts. Eligible applicants have to be adult drug court programs. And recipients that were funded under TI-16-009 and TI1- 17-001 will be screened out. And this is on page 17 of the solicitation. 
Under Attachment 1, your application must provide at least one experienced licensed mental health substance abuse treatment provider organization. There are no exceptions. That’s the screen out. A list of all direct service provider organizations, letters of commitment from all identified direct service provider organizations, Statement of Assurance - providers must meet the two-year experience requirement and are appropriately licensed and accredited in your state, letters of commitment from each adult treatment drug court or adult tribal healing to wellness court judge when multiple jurisdictions are applying within one application. 
Under Attachment 4, you must include a letter from the state substance abuse agency, the SSA or designated representative. There are two exceptions. If you are the SSA, you do not need to submit this letter. But you have to submit a letter to the SSA informing the SSA of your intent of applying for this application. 
Okay, at this time we will take questions again. We will pause and take questions, operator. 
OPERATOR:  Thank you. As a quick reminder, if you would like to ask a question, please press star then one. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  Okay, we have a few questions on the Q&A. So I will read those. Can a university contracting with the county be an applicant? No, the university can be a partner, but the applicant must be the government entity, the county. 
The next question is I notice this year a change in the language in these grants. In the past, drug court SAMHSA grants have been released as extension and enhancement grants. Now this current grant only mentions expansion. Does SAMHSA not fund purely enhancements anymore? Yes, that is correct. Our priority now is to increase access to the most people possible. We are able to do enhancements, but our priority is to do expansions. So we have a minimum of 40 new clients that must be served by the program. And I will talk a little bit more about that during this presentation. But we're not doing pure enhancements anymore. The solicitation requires that all programs serve new clients. 
OPERATOR:  Our next question comes from Lauren. Your line is open. 
LAUREN: Yes, hi. I was curious, I understand that this grant will be awarded in October of 2018. Is this an annual grant that comes out for solicitation every year? 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  We cannot confirm that we will have a solicitation every year. We receive approval. Our budget gets approved by Congress every year. So we cannot confirm what will happen next year. So far in the past years, we had a solicitation come out every year. But that can change at any time. 
LAUREN: Thank you. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  You're welcome. 

OPERATOR:  Our next question comes from John. Your line is open. 
JOHN: I've got a Veterans Court and was wondering, I read the language of the grant and it seemed to be focused on providing or enhancing direct services, direct care services, as opposed to increasing your capacity through case managers, drug testing and so forth. Is that a misinterpretation? Are we still eligible to apply if we're not going to fund actual direct services? 
MR. RUSSELL T. HARRISON:  What will you be using the funding for again? Could you repeat that again? 
JOHN:  Right now we're limited to 25. We have a waitlist of, well, 15 and growing. But we need to fund another case manager and expand our ability to take more clients as well as expand drug testing for those. We have mandatory minimum two screens a week which gets pretty expensive. So that's what the main focus of it was. And I was wondering if, given the language that seem to be focused more on providing direct care services, expanding those services. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  Well, you're able to cover the cost for a case manager and drug testing. But you also have to provide treatment services or referral to treatment services. That is the primary goal of the application is to be able to provide treatment, access to treatment. And you can cover a case manager and drug testing as well. 
JOHN: Fortunately, most of our participants are receiving services through the VA. We do have a local mental health care provider that provides services for participants that are not qualified for VA benefits. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  Jon, we have Jon Berg on the line. You may be able to add to my response. 
JON BERG:  Yes, and you covered that well, Amy. But yes, you could still apply and cover treatment services that may not be covered by the VA. That does support the substance use treatment services that they are receiving. So if there's any gaps in services, you could include those. 
JOHNN:  Okay, thank you. 

OPERATOR:  Our next question comes from Tom. Your line is open. 
TOM: Hi, I was hoping for a little clarification regarding the state single point contract and then the SSA. I contacted our state single point of contact and they told me no review was necessary. Does that suggest then I still have to get a letter from the single state agency? 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  No, this year our requirement is that you submit a letter to the SSA letting them know of your intent. So, as long as you submit a letter to the SSA, you are covered that's all we need. We just want to ensure that they are informed of your intent to apply for a drug court application. For a drug court grant.

TOM: Thank you. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  And that is on page 20 in more detail. 
OPERATOR:  Our next question comes from Lauren. Your line is open. 
LAUREN: Hi, yes. So I just have a couple more questions. So, number one, do you all have any data on how many first-time applicants receive funding? 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  No, but we can we can look into that.

LAUREN: I guess my question would be so we're hearing that you have to apply multiple times sometimes before you receive funding. And we're just wondering like what is the probability of us receiving funding the first time we apply? 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  Well, many programs do receive funding the first time. And we have been working to make this application process easier. And today we have invited NADCP, Carolyn Harden, that will be providing assistance and maybe some tips on how to help new applicants as well. So it is our goal to ensure that new applicants are also funded. And many are. We just want to provide as many, as much assistance as we can to ensure that new applicants are also funded. 
LAUREN: And you stated earlier that we need to have served 40 new clients. Now, is that within the grant period? 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  Per year. So this is a five year grant and the requirement is 40 clients, new clients, per year. 
LAUREN:  Wow, okay. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  But you're able -- and I will touch base into this a little bit later too -- but you're able to apply for less than 40 depending on what the situation is. We just need you to explain to us why you're not able to serve 40. So you could you apply for less funding than the full amount of $400,000 per year if you're not going to be able to serve 40 clients. You could apply for 20 clients and less funding. Just give us a justification of why you're not able to serve 40 clients. 
LAUREN: So once we apply for the grant, if we get the grant, we have – I’m sorry, what is the grant period again? Five years. So we don't have to apply each year, correct? 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  Right. You don't have to apply each year. There's a continuation application process each year, but it's not a full application. 
LAUREN: Right, gotcha. Thank you so much. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  You're welcome. Okay, we have one question in the Q&A. I am a new treatment court coordinator and there is only one coordinator in my county, me, for 15 collaborative courts. Due to this time constraint, do you guys provide assistance with filling out the application? We can provide as much guidance as necessary, but we don't really provide any assistance. But we do have NADCP support and they may be able to provide additional assistance. And Carolyn will talk a little bit about that a little bit later during the webinar today. But it is a lot I know. I understand that 15 courts is a lot. And we try to provide as much guidance as we can. Jon Berg is listed on the solicitation. So for a specific question, Jon can respond to any questions until the deadline of this application. But additional assistance, NADCP may be able to provide and Carolyn can respond to that. 
MS. CAROLYN HARDIN:  This is Carolyn. Essentially, what we would tell you is that if you need additional assistance, many of the state drug court coordinators provide assistance to their courts. So you may want to check with them. You may also want to check with other courts that are near you that have applied for SAMHSA grants before and they may be able to assist you. So those are things that you can look at. Many of the state drug court coordinators do help. They provide assistance with the people who apply. 
LAUREN:  Well, Carolyn, what happens if you actually are a state drug court coordinator and you need support in helping those applicants in your states? 
MS. CAROLYN HARDIN: They can contact us and then we will connect them with other folks who have submitted applications that have been successful at the state level. 
LAUREN: Okay, great.

MS. AMY ROMERO:  Okay, we have another question in the Q&A. Do you want letters of commitment from evaluation partners or just direct service providers? We don't need letters of commitment from evaluation partners. We just need a letter from direct service providers. And they have to ensure that they are accredited and licensed and have been providing services for at least two years in your state. 
Next question. In the application, it reports only non‑government agencies need the letter to SSA. Jon may be able to respond to that. But the letter to the SSA has to be submitted by all applicants and all applicants must be government agencies. And it's a letter to the SSA. And that must be submitted. 
JON BERG:  That's correct, Amy. Unless the applicant is the SSA, then they should submit a letter to the SSA just so that they're aware of what they are planning on doing. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  Yes, and we don't need a letter from the SSA. We only need your program to send a letter to the SSA. 
Okay, the next question on the Q&A. If the SPOC says there is no requirement, do we still need to include a letter? I think the previous response includes that. The SPOC is just a different term for the SSA. You just need to make the SSA aware that you will be applying. If that is not a requirement in your state, we just would like to ensure that they are aware. 
OPERATOR:  And our next question from the line comes from Chris. Your line is open. 
CHRIS: Yeah, hi. This is Chris from Tucson and I have my judge in the room just so you know. We were wondering how you define 40 new client. Is that 40 new people, defendants, admitted to the program? Is that a defendant who has reoffended with a new charge? How do you define 40 new clients? 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  Jon, do you want to respond to that one? 
JON BERG:  Sure. That would be 40 new clients to the drug court. So this funding would not pay for those that are already in the drug court. This would be for new clients. And 40 isn't a magic number. You can serve more than 40. In fact, a lot of our drug courts serve 80 to 120 clients. It depends on the types of services that you're going to provide. If you're providing MAT and residential treatment options that are more expensive, then you're not going to be able to treat as many clients probably. But if you're serving them and you're providing outpatient, you may be able to serve 100, 120 clients per year. So 40 is not a maximum number. It's kind of the minimum that we expect with this amount of money. If drug courts can't serve 40, then they can request less money and serve fewer clients. But they must be new clients to your drug court. You can't go back ones that have been in the drug court the past year and sign them up. These are to be new clients being served with this grant funding. I hope that answered your question. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  Okay, I think the next questions will be covered as we as we continue with the presentation. I will review the questions on the Q&A and we will do another set of questions in a little bit. But I wanted to just move forward with expectations because a lot of your questions we will have responses for your questions. 
Okay, expectations. So the expectations for grantees are to provide a coordinated multi‑ system approach designed to combine the sanctioning power of treatment drug courts with effective SUD treatment services to break the cycle of criminal behavior, alcohol and/or drug use and incarceration or other penalties. Applicants should propose to increase access and availability to services to a larger number of clients increasing the number of individuals served and the gaps in the continuum of treatment for individuals in these courts who have treatment needs for SUD and/or co‑occurring substance use and mental health disorders. Grant funds must be used to serve people diagnosed with an SUV as the primary condition. And this is listed in more detail on page 7. 
Please note that SAMHSA will use discretion in allocating funding for these awards taking into consideration the specific drug court model as appropriate, the number of applications received per model type and geographic distribution. 
SAMHSA is looking for cost-effective grants and grants that serve an appropriate number of clients. Our priority is to increase access to treatments to new clients. And I have an example here. So, for example, if an adult treatment drug court currently serves 50 persons per year and has a waiting list of 50 persons but lacks funding to serve these persons, the applicant should propose to expand service capacity to be able to admit some or all of those persons on the waiting list. 
If a drug court can't reasonably increase their numbers by an additional 40 clients, they should consider requesting less than the maximum award amount of $400,000 per year. If you propose to serve less than 40 clients per year, a well‑reasoned and documented justification must be included. And this is listed on page 7. 
Grant funds should not be used for the general operation and management of adult treatment records including salaries for staff such as judges, court clerks, probation officers, and staff who are not actively involved in the therapeutic process, or referral to and entry into treatment for substance use disorders. You can have a drug court coordinator as long as they have a role in the therapeutic process or referral to treatment. 
And these are the required activities and services. Screen and assess clients for the presence of SUD and/or co‑occurring substance use and mental disorders and use information obtained from the screening and assessment to develop appropriate treatment approaches. 
Provide evidence‑based and population appropriate treatment approaches to meet the unique needs of diverse populations at risk. Treatment services include outpatient, day treatment, intensive outpatient, recovery housing, or residential programs. 
And provide wraparound recovery support services, for example, childcare, vocational, educational, and transportation services, designed to improve access and retention in services. 
Collaborate with community partners to provide a comprehensive system of services. 
And another required activity is a disparity impact statement. This is a disparity impact strategy. And it's a systems change process in response to policies aimed to improve health outcomes by: creating a more strategic focus on racial and ethnic populations in SAMHSA investments; and using a data‑informed quality improvement approach to address racial and ethnic disparities in SAMHSA programs; and utilize emerging priorities to influence how SAMHSA does its work. 
Historically, racial and ethnic minority populations in the U.S. tend to have:  less access to care; lower or disrupted service use; and poorer behavioral health outcomes. 
The disparities statement is due to SAMHSA 60 days after the award. And the statement should include the population and sub‑population of focus and also should explain how you will monitor, using the GPRA data, access to treatment; use; and your outcomes. A plan for adhering to CLAS, the National Standards for Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services, is also supposed to be included. 
Okay, we will pause again for questions. And I think that that section may have provided a response to some of the questions previously stated, but let us know if you have additional questions.

OPERATOR:  Another quick reminder, if you’d like to ask a question, please press star then one. Tom, your line is open. 
TOM: When you gave your example about the 50 participants on the waiting list and we want to increase to 50, in the grant does it have to be that specific? Or can we just say over the course of the grant, every year we’ll service more participants, like 60 participants a year? Or do we need to make that comparison when writing that in? 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  No, you could just let us know how many new clients you are planning to serve per year. And they could be different. You could have less clients on the first year because there is a startup pace. So during the first four months, we give you those first four months. It is just time for program implementation. So on year one, you could say that you will serve let's say, for example, 40. And then on year two, three and four, you will serve 50. So it's up to you. You don't have to give us that. That was just an example. But you don't have to give us that type of information, just one number per year. 
TOM: Thank you. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  You're welcome. 
OPERATOR:  Thank you. The next question comes from Amanda. Your line is open. 
AMANDA:  If we're wanting to ask for funding for a probation officer that would be strictly for drug court that would be in the process for referring to treatment, I guess help me understand what referring to treatment means in terms two to the probation officer
MS. AMY ROMERO:  If that person is able to conduct some type of screening or assessment or be able to refer or do some case management so the client receives treatment services, you may be able to cover that person under these grants. But they have be involved in referral to treatment in some way.

MS. CAROLYN HARDIN:  This is Carolyn from NADCP. So generally, probation is not covered unless they are doing clinical assessments or doing clinical groups. So generally, you cannot cover them under the program. They do have a different function. So unless your officers are doing clinical functions, they could not be covered. 
AMANDA: Okay, thank you.

OPERATOR:  Our next question comes from Kelly. Your line is open.

KELLY: This is in regards to kind of the last question also. Are you able to pay the prosecutor and/or the defense attorney that sits on the treatment court team? 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  No, the grant does not cover court staff or the prosecutor or the defense attorneys. Yeah, they're not covered. 
KELLY: Okay, thank you. 
MS. CAROLYN HARDIN: So this is Carolyn with NADCP. Just keep in mind it covers clinical services or substance use, mental health.  It also can cover wraparound services. But nothing that deals with the day-to-day operations of the court, like probation, prosecution, defense, judicial. None of those can be covered. But if you're adding treatment personnel, you're adding case managers, yes, drug testing, those type of things are allowable. The others are not. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  Thank you, Carolyn. Do we have additional questions? 
OPERATOR:  Yes, the next question comes from Deanna. Your line is open. 
DEANNA:  Thank you. Could you address the funding for recovery housing? 
MS. CAROLYN HARDIN: Actually, that's going to be addressed in the next section of the presentation. So if you could just hold your question for a few minutes and at the end of that next section, we're going to open up the line again for questions. So if you still have more questions about it, just feel free to pose your question then. 
DEANNA:  Thank you. 

MS. AMY ROMERO:  I'm getting a lot of questions about the PowerPoint. The PowerPoint and the recording for this webinar will be available in the next two weeks on the SAMHSA website in the same place of the solicitation. So right under the 2018 grants where you find the solicitation, right below the solicitation we will have the recording and the PowerPoint. But it will take us two weeks. So it won't be right away. 
OPERATOR:  Thank you. Our next question comes from Beth. Your line is open. 
BETH: Thank you. My question is concerning the total amount of the award which I have read is $400,000. But yet, I'm also hearing that it is per year. So if you have a five year program, that means you can ask for more than $400,000 for those five years, for each one? Or is it a total of $400,000 over those five years? 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  It’s $400,000 per year. So every year, it’s $400,000 for up to five years. 
BETH:  So I can ask for two million dollars. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  Yes, but I think when you complete your application, you have to submit your yearly request. So I think when you complete the application. It will ask you for how much are you requesting yearly. So you will say $400,000 if you're applying for the maximum amount and that will be per year for five years, correct. 
BETH: Okay, so there is no cap that one applicant can request other than obviously the two million dollars which is $400,00 for five years. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  That is correct. But we recommend that you only ask for what you will need, what you will use. 
BETH: Oh, of course, of course. I just when I read into it, it sounded like you can only ask for $400,000. You have to break that up out through all of the years that your program is going to be asking for.

MS. AMY ROMERO:   $400,000 per year. 
BETH: Okay, thank you for that clarification. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  You're welcome. 

OPERATOR:  Our next question comes from Chris. Your line is open. 
CHRIS:  So my question has to do with the term case manager because sometimes that term means something different in a clinical setting than it does in a legal setting. And so my you had mentioned that you can hire someone as long as they're involved with referral to treatment. And so what I'm wondering is if we hired someone to manage the court cases and do the GPRA reporting and refer folks to treatment providers, is that acceptable under this grant? Because we currently do not have a position like that with our current court. 
MS. CAROLYN HARDIN:  So this is Carolyn at NADCP. I have a question for you. Who is doing current supervision of those clients now? 
CHRIS:  We have case managers from social service providers that are present in our courtroom and defendants are referred to them. 
MS. CAROLYN HARDIN: They do the case management of those clients. 
CHRIS: They do the clinical case management of those clients. 
MS. CAROLYN HARDIN: So are you asking for clinical case management or you asking for court case management? 
CHRIS: Well, I'm asking for court case management in that there are going to be recording requirements for the grant. You mentioned GPRA for one. And then there's going to be a certain amount of screening and then referral to those social service agencies. And so when we say case management in the legal session, and there's also going to be cases that have to be updated, that's what I'm wondering is if we can have a person to do that. 
MS. CAROLYN HARDIN: What you don't want to do is to hire somebody with these funds and that person is really doing court related work and not clinical. So even though, so your question would be if you already have clinical case management and is this person going to be doing the clinical assessment to be doing referrals? Or are they just picking up a phone and they're making a referral? Because that's a big difference and that is not allowable with these dollars. 
FEMALE:  What part is not allowable? 
MS. CAROLYN HARDIN: Unless it high school changed.  You guys are going to allow them to use it where they're not doing clinical assessment. They're just making a referral. 
CHRIS: Okay, I think I got it. I think I understand. So the answer would probably be no. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  For the drug court, no. But Jon, do you want to add to that? 
JON BERG: Yeah, if the case manager is making referrals for wraparound services and those types of enhancements that are allowed with the grant, that can be part of what the case manager does. But they cannot be just strictly working through the functions of managing the drug court and working clients through the drug court. It has to be with providing them and directing them to wraparound services, substance use treatment, clinical type services. 
CHRIS: Housing?

JON BERG:  Sure.

CHRIS: And coordinating with mentors, okay. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  Do we have additional questions? 
OPERATOR:  Yes, our last question comes from Tom. Your line is open. 
TOM: Hi, I was briefly disconnected. So you may have answered this. But if we have a clerical staff with 100 percent effort going through the drug court and not doing court functions, is that an appropriate salary we could request? 
MS. CAROLYN HARDIN: Can you repeat your question? 
TOM: If we have a clerical staff with 100 percent effort to the drug court, no involvement with other court functions, can we request that salary? It's been allowed in the past I know.

MS. AMY ROMERO:  Jon, can you answer that? 
JON BERG: I guess I would need a little bit more clarification I guess of what the role would be. Because you typically have a court recorder that takes care of the operations in the court, right? So can you explain what types of operation? 
TOM: Yes, this person actually is in the drug court area. As our participants are coming in for case management sessions, she's like a receptionist as well as does filing, faxing, emails, coordinates with drug testing. She does a lot of stuff for us, a lot of clerical stuff. 

JON BERG: As long as it's maintaining and operating issues related to the grant, a clerical position would be appropriate. But I would make sure I looked at the level of effort that that person -- the amount of time that she's spending with the grant is all that’s being charged to the grant. 
TOM: Okay, thank you. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  And that was for other positions. I think we have talked about other positions like case managers that may have multiple roles. You could just put a level of effort of 25 percent to this grant and cover the rest with other funds. So just cover for the clinical work with this grant. Okay, I think we’ll continue and we’ll take more questions as we move forward. 
MS. TWYLA ADAMS: All right, everyone. My name is Twyla Adams. So good afternoon to you. Thank you for joining us today. I'll now continue and highlight the allowable activities under the grant. So, as you know, Medication Assisted Treatment is an important evidence-based treatment protocol. So although the provision of MAT is not required, SAMHSA strongly supports the right of individuals to have access to FDA-approved medications under the care and prescription of a physician. Therefore, grantees are strongly encouraged to use up to 35 percent of the annual grant award to pay for FDA-approved medications when their client has no other source of funds to do so. And this information can be found on page nine of the Funding Opportunity Announcement. 
The next slide. So continuing with MAT, if you do choose to provide MAT, then you must affirm, in Appendix C: Statement of Assurance, that the adult treatment drug court will not deny access to the program to any eligible client because of his or her use of FDA-approved medications for the treatment of substance use disorders. Please note that there are no exceptions to this policy. In all cases it MAT must be permitted to be continued for long as the prescriber determines that the medication is clinically beneficial. Again, this can be found on page nine of the Funding Opportunity Announcement. 
So another allowable activity is HIV rapid testing and hepatitis B and C testing. So again, recipients are allowed to provide HIV rapid preliminary antibody testing as part of their treatment regimen and/or test for viral hepatitis B and C in accordance with state and local requirements either on-site or through referral. This can be found on page 10 of the Funding Opportunity Announcement. 
So peer recovery support services is another allowable of activity. So applicants have the option of providing peer recovery support services. Grant funds allocated for treatment and recovery services may be used to provide peer recovery support services designed and delivered by individuals, who have experienced a substance use disorder or co‑occurring substance use and mental disorder and are in recovery. Peers may include, but are not limited to, peer mentors, peer navigators, forensic peers and family members of those in recovery. So this can be found on page 10 of the Funding Opportunity Announcement. So for applicants providing peer recovery support services, please describe the type of peer training offered, formal or informal; the type of training certification peers will possess; the peer supervision structure and the manner in which peer support services will be evaluated and measured.

Next, recovery housing. This is another allowable activity under the grants. So applicants have the option of using up to 30 percent of grant funds to provide recovery housing. Recovery housing is part of that substance use disorder treatment continuum of care. Recovery housing refers to safe, healthy and substance‑free living environments that support individuals as part of their treatment and recovery plan consisting of a structured environment with consistent peer support, ongoing connection to recovery supports and case management services. So this information can be found on pages 10 and 11 of the Funding Opportunity Announcement. Please note that SAMHSA grant funds may not be used to pay for the purchase or construction of any building or structure to house any part of the program. And this can be found on page 61 of the Funding Opportunity Announcement. 
The next slide please. So I would like to summarize some of the funding limitations for the allowable activities under the grant. So up to 15 percent of the annual grant can be used for infrastructure necessary for expansion of services. Up to 20 percent of the annual grant can be used for data collection and performance measurement. Up to 5 percent of the annual grant can be used for HIV rapid testing. Up to 35 percent of the annual grant can be used for FDA-approved medication as part of MAT. Up to 5 percent of the annual grant can be used for viral hepatitis B and C testing. And up to 30 percent of the annual grant can be used for recovery housing. So these limitations can be found on page 21 of the Funding Opportunity Announcement. 
So now we're going to open the line again for questions about the information that I just covered.

OPERATOR:  Another quick reminder, if you like to ask a question, please press star then 1. If you'd like to withdraw your question, please press star 2. One moment as we wait for the first question. Our first question comes from Michelle. Your line is open. 
MICHELLE: Yes, our question is we currently operate using SAMHSA funds and our grant will expire the end of September. And we're looking to expand the number of participants. But will we be allowed to use these funds to cover participants already in our program? Like MAT as well for participants that are currently -- that will still be on our case when we start taking in our new -- our waitlist
MS. TWYLA ADAMS: So, as Amy said, before really our focus is expanding to serve new unduplicated clients. If you already are treating clients now and you are not providing MAT, and if you are awarded the grant and would like to provide MAT to them, funds could be used in that manner. However, again, the focus of this funding opportunity is increasing access to new clients. But again, the grant funds could be used to provide MAT to existing clients who don't have access to that service. Amy, can you just respond? I just want to make sure that you say you're an existing drug court grantee. So when were you funded? Because we just want to make sure that you are eligible to apply to this funding opportunity. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  If you are on that last year and your grant will end on September, 2018, you are eligible to apply. 
MICHELLE: Yes, we are eligible. Ours expires in 2018, September. Also, I'm sorry, we also have under that is being funded with our current grant our coordinator position to deal directly with participants. They provide services. In our new request, would we be able to include them once more to continue their positions? 
MS. TWYLA ADAMS: So actually, can you repeat that one time? I just want to make sure I understand your question. 
MICHELLE:  Under our current grant that expires in 2018, we have two coordinators that their salary is paid through this grant. In the new request, will we be able to request once again their salaries? 
MS. TWYLA ADAMS: It seems like you should be able to because they're going to be helping again to ultimately increase access, increase the number of new unduplicated clients that you're serving. So it seems like, again, if they're part of the grant program so that you can provide these treatments and wraparound services, it seems like it should be allowable costs under this new proposal.  Eileen has joined us. She's our grants management person that deals with budget matters. So let me defer to her to answer this question. 
MS. EILEEN BERMUDEZ: Yes, because the idea is that this is a totally different grant, fully separate expectations, totally different operation. So any of the costs that are necessary as a direct cost to run to operate your program, you could include. So even though that grant ends, if you're going to need them to provide services and to function in this, you can put place them under personnel. 
MICHELLE:  Thank you. 
MS. EILEEN BERMUDEZ: Now, what you don't want to do is, since I'm on the topic, what you don't want to do is if by any chance your previous grant you're requesting a no-cost extension and it runs into if you were funded for this grant, then you would need to adjust their level of effort because then that wouldn't be allowed, if that were the case. 
OPERATOR:  Thank you. Our next question comes from I believe it’s Brianna.  Your line is open.

BRIANNA:  Thank you.  My question is pertaining to personnel and I believe that you probably just answered it. In our drug court, the case manager and the probation officer are one and the same. The case manager does the assessment to see if they're eligible for the program based on criteria. And then they do a clinical assessment to see if there's any SUDs and then can refer them to outside agencies and wraparound services. So that would fall underneath personnel and be able to be one of the allowable expenses. 
MS. EILEEN BERMUDEZ: From a grants management perspective, that is okay. Programmatically, you may want to refer to maybe Amy or Twyla or Jon only because we want to make sure that their duties aren't overlapping or that there's a conflict of interest of some sort.

BRIANNA:  Which is understandable. But given the funding that we have right now, we kind of have our hands tied. We don't have the resources to do that which is why we're looking to apply for this. 
MS. EILEEN BERMUDEZ: From a grants management perspective, I think it's okay as long as there's no conflict of interest. In other words, one person checking the other person.

BRIANNA: Right, understandable.

JON BERG:  And it sounds like from a programmatic aspect, the way you described it, it would be also okay. 
BRIANNA:  Perfect, thank you so much. 
OPERATOR:  Lauren, your line is open.

LAUREN: So in regard to the recovery houses, are Oxford houses included in that? 

MS. TWYLA ADAMS: Yes.

LAUREN:  Okay, thank you. 
OPERATOR:  Sally, your line is open. 
SALLY: Yes, I am working with a court that is a current grantee that is going to be expiring September 30th and also does not have a no-cost extension associated with it. So my question is that come September 30th, hypothetically at least, if we are awarded this grant that we intend to apply for, what was 125 clients being served will then shrink back down to the pre‑grant numbers of about forty because we were awarded this expansion grant that's about to expire. So in effect, is this new grant really simply a kind of a continuation to continue doing the expanded work that we've been doing for three years? Are we expected to do what we've been doing these last three years with 125 plus minimum of 40 more? 
MS. TWYLA ADAMS: The latter, the latter scenario. So basically, if you were to obtain this grant award, then you would need to expand further to at a minimum serve 40 new unduplicated clients each year.

SALLY: But we would be requesting funds to continue to operate at the 125 level that we have been these last three years? 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  No, not if you don't have funding. So if that funding ends, you will be expected to provide services to 40 at least -- I mean, most of our programs serve over 100 clients, 125, 150 with these fundings. So you will be able to provide services to new clients and that's a minimum of 40. But if your program can easily serve 125, that will be the expectation, yeah. 
SALLY: Okay, thank you.

OPERATOR:  Thank you. Our next question comes from Diana. Your line is open. 
DIANA: Yes, thank you. Can you expand upon the funding for recovery housing as far as what allowable cost that would be? I heard that construction was not an allowable cost, but I missed part of the other statement.

MS. TWYLA ADAMS: We have a pretty broad definition here. So like I said it refers to safe, healthy and substance‑free living environments that support individuals as part of their treatment and recovery plan, consisting of a structured environment with consistent peer support or ongoing connection to recovery support and case management services. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  Yes, you cannot build a new facility. But if there is an existing facility in your community, you're able to use that.

JON BERG:  Let me add to that. The funding for recovery housing follows the client. So it doesn't go to like recovery housing operation. It goes to paying for the rent or lease for an individual. It doesn't go for facilities.

DIANA:  Okay, so rent would be an allowable cost for each of those individuals that would be in a sober living facility? 
JON BERG: Correct. 
DIANA: We're trying to start a sober living facility in our community. So that's why I'm asking these pointed questions. So it sounds as though the case management could be covered. The rent or the lease could be covered, the MAT testing, HIV testing et cetera?

JON BERG:  Right. The specific rent for that individual, it can't be, you can't say, well, we're putting in for $400,000 and so that's $120,000 that can be used for recovery housing. So we're going to just put that into the facility. It has to be for individuals that are going to be placed in recovery housing. It's not to build or create recovery housing. It should be existing recovery housing that these individuals would go to and you would pay for their lease or rent for the period of time that they need for their move into the community. 
DIANA: Okay, so if I'm hearing you correctly then it has to be an already established sober living house?

JON BERG: That's correct. It can’t be used to build or create recovery housing. 
DIANA:  Okay, so we couldn’t create a sober living house and use the individual rent to fund them?

MS. AMY ROMERO:  No.

JON BERG: No.

MS. AMY ROMERO:  Because you have to cover each individual. 
DIANA: Right, okay. Thank you. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  Okay, operator, do we have additional questions? 
OPERATOR:  Yes, we have two other questions. Our next question comes from Monica. 
MONICA: Hi, so in Alameda County, we have a bunch of recovery residences that are already in existence. And so we would like to use funding for them. But I guess my question is kind of a two-parter. So first of all, I heard that the money must go towards rent. But are our recovery residencies considered, would they be sub‑grantees or sub‑recipients? And would they then be able to be eligible for like the indirect costs and that sort of thing? Or are they just considered vendors or contractors that we would just pay for the cost of rent? And then my second question is do recovery residences, do they fall under sort of the direct service provider requirements where we need the letters of commitment and also they must be licensed and have two years of service and all of that kind of stuff?

MS. TWYLA ADAMS: Jon do you want to answer that?

JON BERGER:  Yes, I was wondering if Eileen wanted to on that first part.

MS. EILEEN BERMUDEZ: I'm a little concerned and I'm not quite understanding. So I think we should, if we can, go over your first question a little bit. I'm thinking that you are mentioning your clients. Your clients are going to receive specific services? And those are the ones as part of this, one of the services or some of the services that you're providing for them, would be rent, right? 
MONICA:  Yes, in the recovery residences, correct. 
MS. EILEEN BERMUDEZ:  Okay, so it is an allowable cost as far as a service. You wouldn't consider them a sub-recipient because you're providing services as though they're your clients. They wouldn't be identified as a sub-recipient. How is it that you identify clients? It's usually based on your numbers and your GPRA.  It’s usually within the other budget category, isn't it? They're not considered sub‑recipients. Contractors or certain vendors that you may have that are your providers are more of a sub-recipient because you have a contract with them or an agreement. But not your client.

JON BERG:  Right. And we're not looking to pay for the facilities. We're looking to pay for rent or lease. So indirect costs should not be -- that should be considered in the rent or lease of a facility. So they would not be considered, from my perspective, correct me if I'm wrong Eileen, but they would not be allowed indirect costs and other expenses like that.

MS. EILEEN BERMUDEZ:  Right.  Because indirect cost is basically within your budget, if you have a negotiated indirect cost, you'll have all your direct costs and then you'll have indirect costs. The indirect cost applies to you as the applicant. It wouldn't apply to each of your clients and their services. Remember, indirect costs are basically overall organizational costs to run your program. So it's not specific to your client. That is whatever’s negotiated within the lease or the services that you're providing with them. That's not indirect cost.

MONICA: Right, I'm sorry, I thought that when it's a sub-recipient as opposed to just a contractor, then the sub‑recipient of grant funds would be eligible for indirect cost. That's what I was basing that on, but that's fine. I'm clear on that. So I guess now my second question was about whether or not they need to meet the two‑year service requirement and provide the letters of commitment and all of those things.

JON BERG:  No, you don't need to do that. That's really a requirement for treatment service providers and we would not see that. And we don't require licensing for the recovery housing either at this point. This is the first year that we've allowed this. So we'll probably looking into that. But at this point, we don't require that. And you could include the letter of commitment if you want to show that you actually have recovery housing lined up and that that's available as far as if you've included it in your budget, a letter of commitment would be okay. But the other requirement, the letter of assurance or statement of assurance, really has to do more with treatment providers. 
MONICA: Thank you. 
OPERATOR:  Our last question comes from Yvette. Your line is open. 
YVETTE: Hi, thank you. Our site is contemplating submitting one or a single application. But for three of our collaborative courts, because all three have the same problem, we would want to increase our substance abuse treatment as well as recovery housing. So would we have to have 40 unduplicated new clients for each program? Or would it be 40 total for all three? 

MS. AMY ROMERO:  Forty total for all three because you will be considered one program. Even though you have three different sites, you will be one applicant and you will receive no more than $400,000 per year or up to that amount. So forty across all your courts.

YVETTE:  Okay, thank you. 
JON BERG: And as a reminder, if you do include more than one court, you need a letter of commitment from each judge who’s going to be involved in the grant. 
YVETTE: Okay, thanks.

MS. AMY ROMERO:   Okay, do we have additional questions? 
OPERATOR:  Yes, one last question. Amanda, your line is open. 
AMANDA: Yes, so if we don't have any sober living facilities in our in our jurisdiction but we wanted to -- we have a lot of housing problems, could we just do rent to an apartment? I'm not sure with all those requirements for -- would just an apartment work? 
JON BERG: No, it wouldn't because the requirements, as Amy goes back to that, the requirements are recovery housing is part of an SUD treatment continuum of care which includes safe, healthy and substance‑free living environments that supports individuals as part of the treatment and recovery plan. So it's a very structured environment that provides the peer support, ongoing connection to recovery support. So it's not just an apartment someplace in a safe part of town. Recovery housing needs to include all these things that are listed here in the FOA to be considered eligible for the funding through this grant. 
AMANDA: Okay, gotcha.

MS. AMY ROMERO:  I'm getting a lot of questions in the Q&A. I will respond to those, but to stay on time we just have to move forward with our presentation. If you submitted a question through the Q&A, you will receive a response. 
MS. TWYLA ADAMS: All right. So now I'll continue on discussing data collection and performance measurement. So with regard to data collection and performance measurements, all SAMHSA grantees are required to collect and report certain data so that SAMHSA can meet its obligations under the Government Performance and Results Act of 2010. So you must document your ability to collect and report the required data in Section II data collection and performance measurement of your application.

So client demographics, services and diagnosis data will also be collected. This information will be gathered using SAMHSA's Performance Accountability and Reporting System, also known as SPARS; access will be provided upon award.

An example of the type of data collection tool required can be found at the link on the slide, along with instructions for completing it. And this information actually can be found on page 13 of the Funding Opportunity Announcement. 
As I conveyed a few minutes ago, no more than 20 percent of the annual grant award may be used for data collection, performance measurement and performance assessment. And this is on page 14 of the Funding Opportunity Announcement. 
So grantees will be required to report on performance measures such as:  the number of individuals served and adult a drug court program using SAMHSA funds, abstinence from substance use, housing stability, employment status, social connectedness and criminal justice involvement. And this information can be found on page 13 of the Funding Opportunity Announcement.  
So grantees are expected to collect data on clients via face-to-face interviews using the GPRA tool at three data collection points: intake to services, six months post‑intake and at discharge. Applicants are also expected to achieve an intake rate of 100 percent and a six-month follow-up rate of at least 80 percent. Grantees are expected to submit all data via the data collection tool. Post‑awards, grantees will be provided training on the GPRA tool and the data collection tool. 
So recipients are required to report on their progress addressing the goals and objectives identified in Section B.1 of the FOA and that's actually the review criteria section. The assessment should be designed to help you determine whether you are achieving the goals, objectives and outcomes you intend to achieve and whether adjustments need to be made to your project. Performance assessments should also be used to determine whether your project is having or will have the intended impact on behavioral health disparities. You will be required to submit an annual report on the progress you have achieved, barriers encountered and efforts to overcome these barriers. So this information can be found on page 14 of the Funding Opportunity Announcement. 
So with regard to the application Evaluation Criteria, the Project Narrative describes what you intend to do in your project and should address the Evaluation Criteria in Sections A‑E, which can be found on pages 22 through 24 of the Funding Opportunity Announcements. The application will be reviewed and scored by an objective reviewer according to the quality of your response to the requirements in Sections A‑E. Please note that the project narrative, that’s Sections A‑E, together may be no more than ten pages. So this is important that you adhere to this page limitation. It's a new page limitation. But again the Project Narrative should be no more than ten pages. 
So in the next couple of slides, I just want to highlight some common deficiencies that we've noted in some drug court applications over the last three years. So some applications have lacked a comprehensive demographic profile of the target population. Some have lacked a thorough analysis of current data comparing local and national trends of a target population. A list of goals with measurable outcomes related to the overall project. A clear demonstration of cultural competence within the organization as it related to the target population. A clear data analysis plan that demonstrated how the organization would utilize the data collected to inform programmatic decisions. A clear understanding of how to use data collected to improve quality improvement process or implement a culture of data‑driven decision making. So these are areas, again, we have found in the past. Applicants’ scores have been marked down because of deficiencies in these areas. So we're just asking that you pay close attention to make sure that you do address these areas. They are found in the review criteria. 
So next slide. Here are a few more common deficiencies that we found in some of the drug court applications. A clear understanding of how the scope of treatment fits within the Funding Opportunity Announcement. A complete strategy on how the organization would implement their proposed treatment plan. A clear list of goals for how the organization's chosen evidence-based practices meet SAMHSA’s overall goals and objectives. A list of clearly defined immeasurable goals and objectives. A clear description of ties to community organizations and other partnerships that also work with the local target population. A list of key staff that includes relevant experience, qualifications or clearly defined roles and responsibilities. A description of past success with similar projects. 
So again we really strongly encourage you to look at these areas to make sure that you have thoroughly and comprehensively addressed all of the review criteria. That's in the Funding Opportunity Announcement. So now we will open the line up again for questions. 
OPERATOR:  Again, if you’d like to ask a question, please press star then 1. Remember to unmute your phone and record your name clearly when prompted. One moment as we wait for the first question.

MS. AMY ROMERO:  Okay, so we have a lot of questions on the Q&A. So I will review some of those while we wait. Could the 20 percent of the funding for data include salary for an analyst to update input and collect data. Yes, the response is yes. You are able to have a staff under the 20 percent for funding under data that could analyze input and collect data. 
The next question. There are often CPS SRC and recovery of specialists on the staff that provide a continuum of care for recovery oriented systems of care within recovery communities that start in solid recovery housing and integrate into larger recovery communities more than rent. I think that's more of a comment than a question. 
Then we have another question regarding co-occurring disorders. How does SAMHSA define substance abuse as primary when that is not necessarily clear at the time of referral and assessment? Well, you have to be doing -- you have to have identified a substance use issue at the time of their referral in order to be part of this program. And I can let Carolyn add to that a little bit or Jon. 
JON BERG: I'm sorry, can you repeat that? 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  How does SAMHSA define substance abuse as primary when that is not necessarily clear at the time of referral and assessment? Well, you're able to refer and assess clients and provide treatment to those that are in need, but they have to have -- you have to have identified substance use as an issue and then provide the assessment and then the services will be covered for those that are in need based on the assessment. 
JON BERG:  That's correct. And the issue here would be that the client wouldn't have a primary diagnosis of a primary mental illness or serious mental illness as a primary diagnosis. The primary diagnosis should be substance use disorder. So as long as they have a diagnosis for substance use disorder, we want to provide treatment for them. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  Okay, is there a time limit on how long a client can remain in the program? No, that's after your program and the phases that are in your program. I think there is an average of 12 months to 18 months, but we don't have a limit on how long a person can remain in the program. Operator, do we have any other questions. 
OPERATOR:  Yes, the next question comes from Sandy. Your line is open.

SANDY:  Yes, I was just curious. I just wanted to clarify we could use the 20 percent or the 15 percent for evaluation for part of a coordinator salary, even though they're not doing clinical functions. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  No, the 20 percent is just for evaluation. So that minimum, that amount of 20 percent, that is just for performance measures and evaluation. So the coordinator, you will not be able to use that for a coordinator. But you are able to provide -- you're able to fund a coordinator under the grant. But it wouldn't be under evaluation. 
SANDY: Even though the coordinator might be qualified to do that evaluation? 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  Well, so then you will be splitting the level of effort. So that person may need to have an evaluation role at the 50 percent of the level of effort. 
SANDY:  Right. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  And be a coordinator at the 50 percent. So you have displayed those in two different line items. 
SANDY: Okay, thank you. 
OPERATOR:  Our next question comes from Bob. Your line is open. 
BOB: Yeah, I just had a question in regards to transportation. Are we able to put into the grant anywhere where we can coordinate with like a local either the bus station or bus garage and purchase like bus passes or anything for the participants in the drug court as far as getting them back and forth to treatment or appointments or drug court? Because obviously, transportation is a huge issue. We're in a very rural county where sometimes getting to and from appointments often becomes a problem for some of them. Are we able to do that in the grant? 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  Yes, you're able to do that and you have to include that in your budget as well.

BOB: Okay, perfect. Thank you. 
OPERATOR:  Our next question comes from Chris. Your line is open.

CHRIS: I'm sorry, my question was already asked and answered. It was actually the first question. So, thank you.

OPERATOR:  No more questions in the queue at this time. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  Okay, we will continue reading the Q&A in a little bit, but I want to give Eileen an opportunity to do her part of the session. So, go ahead Eileen. 
MS. EILEEN BERMUDEZ: Hello, everyone. My name is Eileen Bermudez. I am the contact person. If you have any questions as far as any budget concerns you have, how to fill out the application and so forth, you can always email me directly to the FOA at CSAT resource box. 
I just wanted to give a few grants management tips to everyone. We are under a new system. It's a NIH type of grant funding system. It's called the eRA. You will be dealing with eRA Commons. So just a few tips. I want to remind everyone it's very important that you register not only your organization, but also your business official as well as your project director. If you don't have a project director identified as of yet, as soon as you do, please let us know and make sure that you do register this person in Commons. If your application after it's reviewed, scored, if it is within the fundable range we will be communicating with you. Everything has to pretty much go through or be received through the eRA Commons system. So it's very important that the key people, not so much the key staff that may or may not be identified in the FOA, but these three positions, your authorized representative, your business official and your project director, must be registered in Commons. Super important. I can't stress that enough. 
It's very important that you give yourself enough time to be able to submit your application. In order to submit your application. You have to be registered. You have to have a DUNS. You have to have a SAMs. You have to be registered in grants.gov, in eRA. That's very important. We usually say begin at least six weeks before, but some of you, if you've been grantees with us before, you already have certain registrations. So it wouldn't take that long. I do recommend that you start as early as possible if you're interested in applying. 
With regards to the budget, we always say -- you always hear grants management say the same thing. We are verifying the budget to make sure that your costs are reasonable, allocable and allowable and also necessary to operate the program. It's very important that you please in detail explain all your costs. Maybe if you've been grantees with me before, I always use the same example. Within your budget justification or your budget narrative, please don't just include evaluator - $30,000. We need to know who the evaluator will be, what their level of effort, a description of what they're doing. How did you estimate the $30,000 with an appropriate cost? These are questions that we constantly ask of all of our budgets. Please take advantage of the narrative and include as much detail as possible. 
You don't have to, have to, have to use the sample budget within the FAA, but it's very -- it's highly recommended that you do. In it you'll see how much detail we look for. You want to include all your direct costs. If you are requesting any indirect costs, again, you want to identify that. If you have a negotiated indirect cost rate, you want to make sure that you include that within your application. 
The funding limitations and restrictions identified in the announcement. There's a section in which you have different percentages that are required. You need to identify those percentages. We need to be able to verify that you're not exceeding those requirements. So within your budget narrative, it's very important that you identify these are the costs that fall under the data collection percent, the infrastructure and so forth. As much detail as you can give in the budget will allow us to be able to review your budget clearer. 
There are a few things as I was hearing all the questions that were coming around. I jotted down a few ideas. As far as the $400,000 it is $400,000 for each year. If you intend to apply for all five years, it's $400,000 each year. The very first application that you submit is going to give us an overall picture of what you think it will cost for all those years. But again, if your application is funded every year, you will need to submit a continuation application just for each of those subsequent years. Again, everything needs to be submitted through the eRA Common. So it's very important that you are registered.

I went over some of the funding limitations. Again, the more detailed that you explain, the better it is. As far as this announcement, I think the key staff position is identified only as the Project Director, correct Amy? 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  Yes, only the Project Director. 
MS. ELIEEN BERMUDEZ: Okay, so you want to remember that the Project Director is the person who handles the day-to-day management of the grant. This is our key staff position. This is the person that we are always looking for. My primary contact would be the Project Director. The Project Director is identified within the budget. Even if it's in kind, we still need to know who it is. If it's in kind, you want to include just the phrase in kind within the budget. Any other sources that you have that are contributing to this budget, we need to know about it as far as the Project Director. That is also the person is identified on the checklist form. And if we were to fund you, on the Notice of Award, the key staff position will be identified. Any changes to that position require prior approval and you can always refer to our website how to about that. Or you can always contact, if you're awarded, your grants management specialist, which will also be identified on the Notice of Award.

 I think that's about as many tips as I can give. If you have any other questions, I can always answer any of them that you may have. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  Okay, at this time, we could take a few questions specific to the budget. 
OPERATOR:  One moment as we wait for the first question.  Sally, your line is open. 
SALLY: Yes, I will probably be contracted as the evaluator. And I'm a faculty member at a university that charges indirect costs. I'm wondering if there is a maximum of indirect costs allowable with this grant.

MS. EILEEN BERMUDEZ: So, the indirect cost really applies to the organization that's applying as the grantee, as the recipient. If you have, with the university or through yourself, have an indirect cost rate agreement, that would be within your negotiated contractual agreement with the applicant. So you can include that within your budget breakdown of what makes up your whatever they're going to pay you. It could include travel, supplies, anything, your personnel and indirect costs within that contractual line‑item. The indirect cost would be separate for the actual applicant for the application. 
SALLY: Thank you.

MS. EILEEN BERMUDEZ: You’re welcome. There are a few things, other questions that just came up recently I just want to talk about briefly. Travel -  you can include bus fare, bus passes. Those are allowable costs. I want to just do quick search. Is there a grantee meeting required for this program?

MS. AMY ROMERO:  Yes, we have a grantee meeting requirement every other year. 
MS. EILEEN BERMUDEZ: Every other year. So that would mean year one would be the first one. The cohort grantee will likely be held in year one. So you want to remember that within your budget for year one, you include the grantee meeting. And then every other year, you will also include it within your budget. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  Yes, and we do encourage all of our drug court grantees to attend an NADCP conference every year or a local conference. 
MS. EILEEN BERMUDEZ: So the most important thing that I want you to remember is register in eRA. And when you submit your budget, detail, detail. Please explain all your costs. Okay, in the interest of time, I would like to introduce Carolyn Hardin. Carolyn, you are now a presenter. And Carolyn is the Chief of Training and Research at NADCP. 
MS. CAROLYN HARDIN: So I'm going to go kind of quickly to leave time for questions. Thank you all. And I will tell you upfront, this presentation is a part of a presentation that we give sometimes at our annual conference or at specific trainings where we talk about some tips. But based on this solicitation, I'm going to share with you all some tips on different things that you can do in this application. And Amy, if you'll give me the slide. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  Okay, can you move the slide.

MS. CAROLYN HARDIN: So, the first thing I want to talk about is I want to get to if you're with me, what does your program need? One of the things that I would ask you to think about, because this application is really talking about expansion. So you've got to increase the number of people that your program is serving. As they’ve re‑iterated several times, 40 is the minimum. There are a number of you who live in jurisdictions that couldn't reach 40, but you do need to expand to something. And if it's less than 40, you need to explain why it would be less than 40. That doesn't make you ineligible. You just need to have justification. 
So if that's the case, you need to think about what do you need? What do you need to do expansion? And if it is we need more treatment or our treatment providers that we work with they need more counselors, they may need more clinical case management. You have to think about that have you had a number of folks where you needed in medication assisted treatment, but you don't have a way to pay for it. This is an opportunity to look at that. When we talk about some of those things, especially for our veteran treatment courts. So some of those courts are using regular treatment and not the VA. But you also may be running into issues, not just in your Veterans Court but in your other courts, where you have long wait lists for people to get in treatment. 
So therefore, you're not bringing in more people because you have a waitlist issue. You should really look at your waitlist issues to see how many folks aren't actually getting direct services yet because we are full to capacity? You may even think about with these dollars as a part of expansion. And part of that, in order to meet the needs of expanding, we may need to create pre‑treatment groups and hire counselors to do pre‑treatment groups until we have openings into our treatment programs. 
So those are things you can look at. You also need to look at with the clients that you have part of your strategic planning to figure out what you need. Let's say you identify there's been a lot of folks who are coming in your program who have trauma issues. Then you may need to add trauma training as a part of this for your staff, your clinical team, to bring those types of services on board. 
So you really want to kind of figure out as you're looking at this, when you're looking at expansion, what are the needs to expand beyond just, okay, we can add more people. But how do we add more people? And what do we need to do that? And what have been the issues with the clients who have come through our program that we need to address in this expansion? 
So the next one is to think about your funder. They've just told you a lot of things about them. Read this application a million times. Read it until you're very clear that you meet the goals of what they're looking for and you understand their description and what the review criteria is. And they went through this PowerPoint and gave you particular pages that you need to go back and be clear on. Please make sure that you are looking at those to ensure that you understand what they're asking for. And if not, take the questions. This will be up coming soon so that you can craft your program. So that when you write this application, you're not rewriting your program to try to meet the funder. But you're seeing that this application meets your needs to do expansion and to meet the needs of the clients that you serve. 
So they told you it's a government agency know the rules for your government agency.  So if this is a county that has to apply or the county is going to apply, know what are the requirements for you to apply through the county. And I'll give you an example.

There was a court once who was applying. But they didn't know that they had to have a city council vote to give them permission to apply. And when they got ready to apply, the council wasn't in session. So they missed the opportunity because they didn't know what their agency requirements were. So make sure that you look at that. 
And then if you're looking at different parts of expansion, what do you need? We talked about you can't get some of those criminal justice don't cover under this, but your clinical needs. To do expansion, do you need to offer more treatment groups? Do you need more intensive outpatient? Do you need relapse prevention groups? What do you need to ask for funding for? And recognize you may not be asking them to fund the total program, but there may be pieces of your program that you need them to fund in order for you to expand for those services. 
So they told you about it’s up to $400,000 per year. Oh, and it's a five-year grant. So you want to think about if that's how long it is, really look at how realistic is it for you to get to forty new applicants per year? If you know that you can't -- you don't serve forty now, what is it that you can actually realistically get to new applicants? And if that's what you want to do in expanding, you need to make sure that your budget and your request matches what is realistic for you to do. You may exceed it and that is great. But don't ask for more than what you can actually spend. 
And then look at the format of the requirements of what they're asking you to do. So in there, it explains how to set up those sessions, page limits, your letters of support, your layouts. This is not your opportunity to get creative. Follow exactly what they're asking for. That makes it easier for when your application is going through the review process that people will identify with where you put your information. And also I recommend even if you leave this call today and you decide, well, we're not ready to write, you should organize. You should have a group of people that participates in your grant writing process. And why? Because one of the things I like to call it is you need a bunch of villagers. You need somebody who is responsible for the evaluation components, your treatment agencies who know the treatment pieces and identify what you need. Are there ancillary services? 
When we talk about this now and all of the new applications allow you to do recovery support services. So looking at wraparound services, what is it that you are missing that are gaps that have been identified? If you guys put together a committee next year or in previous years, when you get ready to write for these applications, you won't be scrambling to try to figure out this information. You'll already have a committee of folks who are required to keep up with that so that you are identifying it and ready to roll when it's time to write your application. 
So even looking at your receipt of letters, who are those coming from? Who do you need to talk to? Having standard letters that you can send that identify what your process is. Meaning here's what we apply for. This is what we intend to do with the funding. And so that when you're asking people to do a letter of support, you're actually giving them a template where they can add in. That just makes the process go better. 
I also want to talk about you may have different people who are writing, but you need somebody to put this application in one voice. You may have somebody writing one particular piece, your treatment agency. But also, this grant application asks you to connect it to the key components and to the drug court best practice standards. So you've got to kind of meld this all where you might know the court aspects, but someone else might be writing the treatment aspect. You need to pull it all together so that the application flows and to ensure that nothing is omitted. 
I'll give you a great recommendation is have someone who knows nothing about your program read your application and see if they understand it and that you've met the requirements. Because if they don't understand it, I guarantee you the people who are required to review your application in the peer process won't understand it either. So if you have one person who's removed from the process that's who I'm talking about to actually take that first draft, identify any questions. Have them review the criteria that outlines what you're required to do in the grant and then let them come back and tell you what they thought was missing. 
So I want you to also think about a part of this application asks for you to give goals. So you want to be smart about that. That means you want specific, measurable, achievable, realistic, time limited goals. So your objectives should be described clear the action to be example. So case managers will administer the ASI assessment tool to at least a hundred eligible offenders in the system is a better objective than case managers to screen offenders. So this way you're looking at what you can do and what you're trying to do and be specific and measurable. 
Objectives must be measurable to determine whether specific targets have been reached. For example, your health care center route will serve 25 more substance use offenders weekly by the end of the first quarter of the first funding cycle rather than the number of substance use offenders will increase. That doesn't tell you anything. So the more measurable you can get, the better. 
What can you achieve given current resources and the new resources added by the grant objectives must be achievable.  Ten hour part‑time nutritionists will have the capacity to see ten mothers each week to design a meal plan. So just kind of some examples of different things. 
Be realistic. Your objectives must consider real barriers, recognize appropriate limitations and anticipate potential problems addressed by the project. So those are things you want to look at. The objective should establish parameters to measure project accomplishments within the specific grant funding cycle. For example, just things about we will recruit five new peer educators by the second quarter of the first funding cycle. So you're looking at peers or recovery.  Anything that you're going to do, just as much as you can be specific about those things to help your funders understand what you are looking for. 
Also, avoid doesn't hope no one will notice syndrome. Whatever the application is asking for, include it. Don't bank on they may miss it because they probably will not miss it. 
The other one is she just talked to you about the budget. Make it realistic. What do you need the money for? And make sure that your narrative reflects what you are asking for funding for. Read your application. If in your narrative and you're talking about different things that you're going to add, you're going to expand or people to do different things, make sure that they are described in your budget narrative. Talk about your staff hours, the need for consultants, if you're going to travel, make sure that you give justifications for all of that. And again, don't apply for the maximum amount of money unless it’s needed. If you can't spend it, don't ask for it. And if you know you can't reach the 40, don't ask for the $400,000. But be specific and be very clear of how you're going to spend that money. 
When they're talking about the evaluation, a number of you may have evaluators to look at your program. This is not the evaluator that you may be thinking to evaluate where the clients are eligible for your program, but overall did you meet the goals and objectives of your program? By adding and enhancing or expanding your program, what was the outcome of doing that? So you will be able to look at process, how your work was accomplished, what changes were a result of your work. So these are looking at your evaluation methodology. And some of you guys had questions about that and coordinating with an outside evaluator is a great way to look at your program and that success.

And these are just a couple of hints. Talk about you're going to do data collection instruments or how the data will be collected. You want to be clear and concise about what you're going to do. The knowledge and experience of the person or individual who will conduct the evaluation and develop clear evaluation questions linked to the goals and objectives of your project. So if you're working with an evaluator, make sure that they understand what role you want them to play and how you're including how that links to what your goals and objectives are in your application as well. 
So those are just a couple hints that I have for you. And also because a number of you asked questions about the recovery centers and not knowing if you have one, on our website we have a publication that is called “Building Recovery Oriented Centers of Care. And in it, it has links for you to identify where there may be recovery centers near you that you may not be aware of. And our website is www.ndci.org. If there are any questions at this time, I'll entertain questions. 
OPERATOR:  Another quick reminder, if you’d like to ask a question, please press star then 1. First question comes from Crystal. Your line is open.

CRYSTAL: I had a question. I was wanting to know in the budget section, I didn't get to ask it then, when Eileen stated that the project director should be listed on the budget even if you're not asking for the salary, even if you just do an in-kind, was that correct? 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  Yes, that is correct. 
MS. EILEEN BERMUDEZ: Because we want to know that there is a project director handling the day‑to‑day management of the grant. We do want to know. We want to see it in the budget. 
CRYSTAL: Okay. And if Carolyn can repeat the website to look for the recovery housing.

MS. CAROLYN HARDIN: ndci.org. 
CRYSTAL: Thank you. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  If you submitted a question through the Q&A, please stay after the webinar. I am working on responding to those questions. So you will receive a response if your question has not been answered. And go ahead. We have time for additional questions. 
OPERATOR:  And the next question comes from Monica. Your line is open. 
MONICA: The general question that I'm trying to just make sure that I understand. So the requirement is that you serve 40 additional participants. And so let's say we served 100 last year and we want to do an application to serve 150 each year or something like that. But let's say just, for example, in our county right now, our participants do UA testing through their treatment providers. But they're slow to give us results. And so we'd like to implement an enhanced random drug testing. Is that considered an expansion as long as we increase it by the 40 people, at least 40, and do that new thing? Or is an application going to be viewed more favorably if we include increasing the total number served and enhancing I guess the UA process? Or should we just focus on how to physically get more people into the court? 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  If you're able to do both, you can do both. Because you can enhance the drug screening and you can serve additional people. But I just want to be clear, if you don't have funding to serve those hundred other people, then our requirement that you serve 40 new clients. If you have other funding and those additional 40 clients that are there are receiving treatment services through some other funding, that's okay. But we are we want to ensure that all programs serve a minimum of 40 new clients
MONICA:  And so I think that's where my confusion comes in. So like I said, on day one when the grant starts, let's just say we already have a caseload but we have something that we plan to do in year one that will allow us to bring in 50 new unduplicated clients for year one. But then in year two, we anticipate that if we're operating at full capacity we could serve 150 people. I know that you guys aren't going to say, no, just serve 40 or whatever. So I get that. But when we talk about adding 40 people, is it adding 40 people per year to what you already serve knowing that some of those people are going to leave? You know, people will graduate. They'll drop out. Things will happen. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  Right. 
MONICA: And so you'll get a new cohort so to speak. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  You have to have 40 intakes at least, a minimum of 40 intakes. And some of those clients we know may not stay in the program. And that is per year. 
MONICA: Okay, got it. 
NATHAN TATE: Hey, this is Nathan Tate. And I just wanted to clarify. I had made a comment in the Q&A. And I just wanted to be sure -- I'm going to probably be writing in part of the grant for some of the recovery housing. And although I know there is some housing that would be referred to as rent, I would probably not describe that in that way especially for programs that were tied into drug courts and treatment and recovery support services intentionally because of how we're working to integrate and get folks more access to care and keep them in the continuum of  continuing care purposefully. But I would not want to not use the right term if that would confuse folks at SAMHSA, no offense or anything. So I want to be sure that I don't confuse people and use the right term. So understanding sort of how under Appendix O, we've got a great list of examples of recovery support services, one that I was very encouraged to read and dig more into the grants and get more terms described. I feel pretty confident that the recovery housing described here would include recovery residences and recovery communities, recovery support housing that would be used for this type of services. 
The money that could be used for this would follow the individual essentially. That's the way that I would understand that. The word that you all were using was rent. But that essentially that the money is following the individual, not going to the program so to speak.

MS. AMY ROMERO:  Right.

NATHAN TATE:  And I'm saying program, not in the sense that it's attached to where there would be clinical services provided, but like a program in the sense that like if you had your students go to a place and they have a program. Do you understand what I'm saying? 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  Yes, that is correct. I mean, the funding has to be used by the individual. So the needed service for that individual. 
NATHAN TATE: Okay, so that individual could be allocated a certain amount that could be related to their recovery supportive housing. And then the drug court receiving the grant would be required to show in this grant application how using the supportive housing provider, how that's valid and so on and so forth, that that entity is meeting these criteria of supportive housing, structured environment with consistent peer support, ongoing connection or recovery and so on and so forth, as it's written out, right?

MS. AMY ROMERO:  Yes, that is correct. But I would recommend that if you have additional questions to contact Jon Berg. He's listed on the solicitation and he can respond to specific scenarios and specific questions that you may have about your community's jurisdiction or how things work in your specific county. Please contact Jon Berg. And his contact information is on the last page of the solicitation. 
Also, if you have any question that was not answered during the webinar, please contact Jon as well. We want to ensure that we provide responses to all of your questions. We have a very large amount of questions in the Q&A. If you would like to stay on the webinar for a few more minutes, I am responding to those questions. If not, please send your question to Jon Berg and he will provide a response. And again, his email is on the last page of the solicitation. 
Well, at this time, I think our time is up and I would like to thank our speakers. I would like to thank Carolyn Harding and Eileen Bermudez for joining us today and providing great tips, and our Branch Chief Twyla Adams. So that concludes our webinar for today. Again, this presentation and the recording will be posted on the SAMHSA website in the next two weeks. Please go back to the solicitation in two weeks and you should see it underneath the solicitation, the recording and the PowerPoint. Thank you all for joining us this afternoon. 
MS. TWYLA ADAMS: Thanks everyone. We wish you good luck in developing your application. 
MS. AMY ROMERO:  Have a great afternoon everyone. Carolyn, would you please make me the presenter? 
OPERATOR:  Thank you. That concludes today's conference. You may all disconnect at this time.

(END OF TRANSCRIPT) 
